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This exhibition celebrates

the fiftieth anniversary of the

founding of the Volunteers’
Circle of the National Gallery
of Canada.

Launched in 1958, the National Gallery
Association of Ottawa—as the organization
was then known—succeeded in recruiting
about 750 members in its first year,
including an honorary membership for
the Group of Seven painter A.Y. Jackson.
Among its first speakers was the Montreal
artist and gallery dealer Agnes Lefort, who
moderated a series on contemporary art.
Rather than providing a comprehensive
survey, the installation comprises a sampling
of documents from the National Gallery
Library and Archives collections chosen to

give a flavour of the times.




After the Second World War, the federal government recognized that Canada
needed to articulate its own national cultural policy at home and abroad.
The National Gallery Act (1951) gave the Gallery more autonomy, through its
Board of Directors, in managing acquisitions, collections, and exhibitions and
in promoting art in Canada. [7] Alan Jarvis, director from 1955 to 1959, used the
popular press and the new medium of television to educate the general public
about art and to raise the institution’s profile. [8—9] Under his leadership, the
staff was more than doubled. By the end of the decade, the Gallery had moved
from the Victoria Memorial Museum Building to its own “temporary”
home (it was housed there for almost thirty years) in the Lorne Building on

Elgin Street. [23]

During the 1950s, the Gallery explored new areas of interest in an international
modernist era: it fostered good Canadian design in consumer goods and fine
crafts, presented its first exhibition of Inuit art, and hosted the most famous
exhibition of photographs in history, Edward Steichen’s 7he Family of Man, during
its world tour. [11—20] Exhibitions marking royal connections also reflected
the period. Queen Mary, the grandmother of Queen Elizabeth II, made a million-
stitch needlepoint carpet between 1941 and 1950, offering it for purchase by

a public institution as her contribution towards Britain’s national effort in the
financial crisis that followed the war. The Imperial Order Daughters of the
Empire (IODE) raised $100,000 to buy the work, and donated the carpet to
the National Gallery. [2—6] The Gallery also mounted exhibitions on senior
Canadian artists, and in 1953 (it became a biennial in 1955) reinstituted the
Annual Exhibition of Canadian Painting surveying contemporary painting in
Canada. In addition, the Gallery promoted Canadian art abroad, notably at
the Brussels world’s fair in 1958, as well as at the biennales of contemporary art

in Sao Paulo, Lugano, Paris, and Venice.

The year 2008 also marks the fiftieth anniversary of the opening of Canada’s
national pavilion at the Venice Biennale, the premier international venue for
contemporary art in Europe. First invited to participate officially in 1952, Canada
was allotted a small room in the Palazzo Centrale. Gallery officials recommended
to Parliament that Canada have its own national pavilion, and Parliament
responded by granting $25,000 from a reserve for cultural projects in Italy.

A contract was awarded to Enrico Peressutti of the Milanese architectural firm
BBPR, and the pavilion was constructed in time for the 1958 Biennale. Located

in the cul-de-sac of a broad avenue, the small, wigwam-like octagonal structure



is surrounded by trees (it even encases a tree) and backs onto a body of water. [21]

Robin Collyer, Canada’s artist designate for the forty-fifth Biennale in 1993,

used the building as the subject of a publication in which he interposed pictures

of the Venice Pavilion with those of the area around his Ontario cabin. [22]

The book design fuses Peressutti’s romantic notion of the Canadian wilderness

with our First Nations heritage, creating a work that is both historical and timeless.

Peter Trepanier

Head, Reader Services
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